### **Notice of Meeting**

### **Overview and Scrutiny Commission**

Councillor Angell (Chairman), Councillor Virgo (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Mrs Birch, Brossard, Gbadebo, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, McLean, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Porter, Temperton and Tullett

### Also Invited:

Councillor Harrison, Executive Member for Culture, delivery and Public Protection.

Thursday 19 September 2019, 7.30 - 9.30 pm Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 1JD



### Agenda

ltem	Description	Page
1.	Apologies for Absence/Substitute Members	
	To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any substitute Members.	
2.	Minutes and Matters Arising	5 - 12
	To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission held on 27 June 2019. To review the Actions Log arising from previous meetings.	
3.	Declarations of Interest and Party Whip	
	Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected interests and the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of the party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting.	
	Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days.	
	Any Member with an Affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest to the meeting. There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when the interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the meeting.	

### EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS

If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. Follow the green signs. Use the stairs not the lifts. Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

4.	Urgent Items of Business	
	Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.	
5.	Public Participation	
	To receive submissions from members of the public which have been submitted in advance in accordance with the Council's Public Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny.	
6.	Corporate Performance Overview Report	13 - 52
	To consider the Chief Executive's Corporate Performance Overview Report covering the fourth quarter, January 2019 to March 2019 (Q4) of 2018/19 financial year and the first quarter, April to June 2019 (Q1) of the 2019/20 financial year	
	Panel members are asked to give advance notice to Kirstine Berry in the Governance and Scrutiny Team of any questions relating to the CPOR(s) where possible.	
7.	Reports from Panel Chairs	53 - 62
	<ul> <li>To note the attached reports which advise the Commission of the current status of each Panel and its work programme, from the Chairman of the:</li> <li>Adult Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel</li> <li>Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel</li> <li>Children, Young People and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Panel</li> <li>The Chairman of the Children, Young People and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Panel advised that the Panel had not met since the date of the last O&amp;S Commission meeting on 27 June 2019 and had no update to report.</li> </ul>	
8.	Her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) Thames Valley Police: Crime Data Integrity Re- Inspection 2019	63 - 66
	To note and discuss the report by her Majesty's Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) re-inspection into crime data integrity of Thames Valley Police published on 25 July 2019.	
	The report can be accessed via this link: <u>https://www.justiceinspectorates.gov.uk/hmicfrs/publications/thames-valley-</u> <u>crime-data-integrity-re-inspection-2019/</u>	

If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. Follow the green signs. Use the stairs not the lifts. Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

	supplied by Councillor Harrison, Executive Member for Culture, Delivery and Public Protection.	
9.	Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions	67 - 72
	To consider scheduled Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions of a corporate nature.	

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted. Please contact Kirstine Berry, 01344 354068, kirstine.berry@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that any special arrangements can be made.

Published: 11 September 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

### OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 27 JUNE 2019 7.30 - 9.10 PM



### Present:

Councillors Angell (Chairman), Virgo (Vice-Chairman), Mrs Birch, Brossard, Gbadebo, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, McLean, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Porter, Tullett and Brown (Substitute)

### Apologies for absence were received from:

**Councillor Temperton** 

### **Executive Members Present:**

Councillor Harrison

### **Also Present:**

Councillor Kirke Timothy Wheadon, Chief Executive and Chairman of the Community Safety Partnership Superintendent Felicity Parker, the Local Police Area Commander of Thames Valley Police and Vice-Chairman of the CSP Kevin Gibbs, Executive Director, Resources Nikki Edwards, Executive Director, People Alison O'Meara, Head of Community Safety

### 4. Minutes and Matters Arising

**RESOLVED** that the minutes of the meeting of the Commission held on 4 April 2019 and 22 May 2019 be approved as a correct record, and signed by the Chairman

### 5. **Reports from Panel Chairs**

The Commission noted the reports which advised the Commission of the current status of each Panel's work programme, from the Chairman of the:

- Adult Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel
- Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel
- Children, Young People and Learning Overview and Scrutiny Panel

### 6. **Declarations of Interest and Party Whip**

There were no declarations of interest and no indications that members would be participating while under the party whip.

### 7. Urgent Items of Business

There were no items of urgent business.

### 8. **Public Participation**

No submissions had been made by members of the public under the Council's Public Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny.

### 9. Crime and Disorder Committee

The Chairman welcomed Timothy Wheadon, Chief Executive and Chairman of the Community Safety Partnership (CSP), Superintendent Felicity Parker, the Local Police Area Commander of Thames Valley Police and Vice-Chairman of the CSP and Alison O'Meara, Head of Community Safety to the meeting of the Commission, in its capacity as the Crime and Disorder Committee.

They gave a revised presentation to the Committee on a Crime Overview, Case Studies and Themed Project Work for 2018/19 as well as Community Safety Partnership Priorities for 2019/20.

Arising from the discussion it was noted that:

- Bracknell Forest CSP considered to be one of the most effective CSPs in the Thames Valley as works together with the various agencies to resolve problems which was reflected in common priorities, reduced crime figures and approach to problem solving
- an issue was identified by HMIC regarding data recording and TVP officers have started to record crimes differently e.g. categorisation changes rather than an increase in victims in the area but it was clarified that historical data had not be reviewed
- exploration of the crime figures by category to explore the background and factors influencing any changes
- discussion on activities being undertaken to tackle shop lifting to support retailers report crimes, tackle theft from construction vehicles and for both crimes create a hostile environment to prevent activity
- it was requested that in future two previous years figures be provided to help track trends and to see the targets for crime reduction
- clarified that focus was on protecting vulnerable residents e.g. burglary and domestic abuse
- discussion on activities being undertaken to prevent domestic abuse and an acknowledgement that it would take a generation to make an impact on this
- neighbourhood policing teams were being used as smartly as possible with a reduction in the volume of extractions and were not being diverted unless essential
- every type of evidential opportunity was looked at in first 24 hours but acknowledgement that changes such as Bail Act did impact on choices available
- cyber crime being tackled through prevention activities
- it was not possible to provide prosecution success rate data but a recent strategic assessment identified that the detection rate had improved from 55 – 65%
- every burglary was investigated in Bracknell Forest
- opportunities had been taken with the Lexicon to train its security staff to have Community Safety Accreditation Scheme (CSAS) accreditation training and are therefore able to carry out various functions. It was noted that there had been a high turnover of security staff and the Community Safety team would follow up whether all the new staff were receiving that training.
- Strategic assessment had identified that a third of suspects were repeat offenders
- Although there was no increase in youth crime in the last three years there
  had been a trend around young teenage boys becoming involved in conflict in
  certain hotspots. Further investigation of the issue would be undertaken to
  see if it related to increased reporting.

- Three examples were given to explain how the problem solving model worked and 58 cases had been closed that were causing fear and distress. Clarification would be provided as to the overall number of open cases and a comparison with other CSPs.
- explanation was given of themed project work to keep up with evolving issues e.g. modern slavery and county lines
- TVP received £822k fund for Early Intervention Fund explained what work was happening locally in each tier
- it was explained how the 11 priorities were arrived at and that the next step was public consultation
- Bracknell Forest was still a safe place to live and work with high levels of public satisfaction, proactive, collaborative culture and promoting community resilience
- it was noted that changes to no cycle signage had made the message confusing but the Lexicon had also put up signage but it was tricky to enforce
- TVP have strong links with the relevant teams within the Council to pass on information about residents adversely affected by criminal activity
- there are a number of prevention orders and bail conditions which can be used to specify particular areas where individuals could not go
- only Thames Valley Police collect crime data therefore other sites quoting crime rates will be based on their original data or the crime survey
- it was suggested that CSAS accreditation training could be used to empower licensing officers to undertake taxi driver assessment so that enforcement of taxi drivers could be improved
- a number of questions were asked relating to the additional funding to prevent drug involvement including what was being put in place during the summer holidays and the level of staffing. Superintendent Parker requested that the questions be sent to her directly to be able to respond as they did not have the drug data at the meeting.
- Police focus on people dealing drugs but it relies on continued demand and supply and is therefore difficult to resolve. Police do undertake stop searches and whilst they do record the grounds for the search Superintendent Parker was unfamiliar with the Met Police forms referred to which also record the reason for the initial suspicion. It was suggested that analysing this could help to review the possible racial imbalance of searches.

The Chairman thanked all attending for their contributions.

### 10. Executive Key and Non-Key Decisions

Members received and noted the scheduled Key and Non-Key Executive Decisions of a corporate nature.

CHAIRMAN

This page is intentionally left blank



### Actions Arising from Overview and Scrutiny Commission Minutes Updated 16 July 2019 Key: Grey = Action Complete

### Meeting 27 June 2019

Action/Information Request	Response
Item 9. Crime and Disorder Committee ACTION: Opportunities had been taken with the Lexicon to train its security staff to have Community Safety Accreditation Scheme (CSAS) accreditation training and are therefore able to carry out various functions. It was noted that there had been a high turnover of security staff and the Community Safety team would follow up whether all the new staff were receiving that training.	On 13 August 2019, Alison O'Meara, Head of Community Safety advised that the Community Safety Team was currently investigating with the Lexicon the numbers of Westgrove security staff who were currently Community Safety Accreditation Scheme (CSAS) trained and if plans were in place to train new staff who joined them. The Community Safety Team was also researching the CSAS training more fully e.g. training outcomes, commitments and powers. The outcome of this research would be reported to the Community Safety partnership (CSP) in due course.

9

### Meeting 4 April 2019

Action/Information Request	Response
Item 9. Crime and Disorder Committee ACTION: Three examples were given to explain how the problem solving model worked and 58 cases had been closed that were causing fear and distress. Clarification would be provided as to the overall number of open cases and a comparison with other CSPs.	On 13 August 2019, Alison O'Meara, Head of Community Safety advised that comparison data was not currently available for 2018/19. However, for 2019/20, the number of referred and closed cases would both be captured for reporting to the next Crime and Disorder Committee in 2020. Comparable data with other CSPs would be investigated. However, as each Community Safety Partnership's problem-solving model varied in how/whether they monitor closed cases, this may not be possible.
Item 9. Crime and Disorder Committee ACTION: A number of questions were asked relating to the additional funding to prevent drug involvement including what was being put in place during the summer holidays and the level of staffing. Superintendent Parker requested that the questions be sent to her directly to be able to respond as they did not have the drug data at the meeting.	On 13 August 2019, Felicity Parker, Superintendent, Bracknell and Wokingham LPA advised that she had received no further questions from Members after the meeting. She further advised that there was no additional funding to prevent drug use for the summer of 2019, however the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) funds would be continually working towards that.
	The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC) had the Early Intervention Youth Fund which was £822k to be spent across the

Action/Information Request	Response
	Thames Valley by March 2020.
	They had also received additional funding of £76k to spend on knife crime in the Bracknell and Wokingham area, both of which should also provide additional resources to combat the issue of drug dealing in particular.
	On 13 August 2019, Alison O'Meara, Head of Community Safety advised that any queries with regard to youth substance misuse could be sent direct to Jillian Hunt, Head of Drug and Alcohol Services.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6 Annex A

Bracknell Forest Council

# COUNCIL PLAN OVERVIEW REPORT

Q4 2018 - 19 January – March 2019

Chief Executive: Timothy Wheadon

## Contents

Section 1: Chief Executive's Commentary	3
Section 2: Budget Position	6
Section 3: Strategic Themes	9
Value for money	9
A strong and resilient economy	15
People have the life skills and education opportunities they need to thrive	18
People will live active and healthy lifestyles	24
A clean, green, growing and sustainable place	29
Strong, safe, supportive and self-reliant communities	32
Section 4: Corporate Health	36
a) Summary of People	36
b) Summary of Complaints	38
c) Strategic Risks and Audits	38

## Section 1: Chief Executive's Commentary

### 1 Introduction

- 1.1 This report sets out an overview of the council's performance for the fourth quarter of 2018/19 (January March 2019). The purpose is to formally provide the Executive with a high-level summary of key achievements, and to highlight areas where performance was not matching targets or expectations, along with any remedial action that is being taken. It complements the detailed Quarterly Service Reports (QSRs), and is based upon the performance data that is available to all Members online.
- 1.2 Overall, good progress was made against the actions in the departmental service plans. At the end of the fourth quarter progress showed:
  - 101 actions (77.7%) are green (36 complete, 64 in progress, 1 waiting)
  - 28 actions (21.5%) are amber (4 complete, 24 in progress)
  - 1 action (0.8%) is red (1 not started)
- 1.3 Section 3 of this report contains information on the performance indicators across the council for each of the strategic themes. Again, the picture was positive, showing that the status for the key indicators in the Council Plan in the fourth quarter is:
  - 49 (76.5%) green
  - 4 (6.3%) amber
  - 11 (17.2%) red

28 further indicators have no set target.

### 2. Overview of Q4 and what went especially well

- 2.1 Teams have continued to deliver services to a high standard during the period. I have highlighted here a small selection of examples from across the organisation;
- 2.2 Recruitment of Executive Director: Delivery has concluded which means that a full CMT is in place from April 2019. People Directorate Assistant Director vacancies have also been filled.
- 2.3 Following the 2019/20 budget being set, attention turned to preparations for the 2018/19 accounts closure. In addition to the annual changes to accounting standards and requirements, the council has had to give specific consideration to its year end obligations as the lead authority for the Berkshire Business Rates pilot.
- 2.4 The council responded to the Government's consultations on its Fair Funding review and move to a 75% Business Rates Retention system in February. While acknowledging that some of the proposals were positive for the sector overall, our response focused on retaining the incentive to retain a large part of local business rates growth, which is a particular benefit for strongly performing economies such as Bracknell Forest and the wider Thames Valley.
- 2.5 There has been significant CIL income in the final quarter of just over £3,000,000 which has pushed the CIL income figure for the year to £7,699,387 which is over double the anticipated target and demonstrates the extent of residential development in the Borough.

- 2.6 Work is also progressing well in preparation for the procurement of a joint venture partner to re-develop sites in and around Bracknell town centre, as approved by the Executive in February. Potential partners have been alerted to the opportunity, in advance of a formal launch event in May.
- 2.7 Following negotiations to amendment the Development Agreement that facilitated the refurbishment of Princess Square and work to develop The Deck, progress has also been made with BRP with regard to the confirmation that the refurbishment of Princess Square will commence in June 2019.
- 2.8 The Transformation Team, in consultation with key stakeholders, have been developing a portfolio management approach to delivering the transformation programme. A new set of projects have been identified and significant progress has been made in assessing the benefits these will deliver to residents and the contribution they will make to significant progress continues across HR & OD.
- 2.9 Work on restructures, leadership and management programmes continue. Work on BFC Employer Branding has started and is due to be completed by June. This will enable us to develop our Employer Value Proposition which will assist in recruitment and retention of key posts.
- 2.10 The refurbishment of the interior of Bracknell Leisure Centre was completed in Q4. This included the opening of the new gym space, two exercise studios, new café and wet side changing rooms. These enhancements now provide a dramatic improvement to the customer experience at Bracknell Leisure Centre.
- 2.11 The overall percentage of good and outstanding schools has continued its improving trend, dependant on the number of school inspections that take place. During the quarter, the target for the percentage of schools judged good or better by Ofsted has been achieved with Brakenhale School, Winkfield St Mary's Primary School and Fox Hill Primary School inspected and rated good.
- 2.12 A new community network to support individuals with mental health needs gain independence has now been fully established and operational across both Adults and Older Adults Mental Health Services.

### 3 What we are doing about things going not quite so well?

- 3.1 Responsibility for debt collection for services provided is generally delegated across the council, with the relevant service area having responsibility. However, performance has been mixed in recent months, with some increasing levels of long-term debt. Consideration is therefore being given to introducing a centralised credit control function to ensure that appropriately skilled staff with the right focus are leading on collecting debt and CMT has agreed to the recruitment of a temporary Credit Controller to bring greater robustness and consistency in collection arrangements.
- 3.2 Fixed term exclusions remain high and are a focus within the Education and Learning team. Inclusion Hubs are being trialled in 6 schools during the spring and summer terms to reduce the amount of exclusions in schools.
- 3.3 Demand for both children's and adult social care has continued to rise during the quarter. As an organisation, we are coping with the increased pressures, but the impact on budgets of the higher numbers is significant. Transformation work is

progressing and delivering significant savings, although this to some extent is masked by the impact of the increased numbers.

- 3.4 Visits to leisure sites have been below target. Bracknell Leisure Centre is tracking slightly lower than Q4 last year by approximately 7,000 visits, and for the full year has performed at 91% of overall target for the site. However, this is a an acceptable level of performance, considering operational disruption inevitably caused by improvement works during Q3 & Q4.
- 3.5 Downshire Golf for Q4 has tracked at almost 2,000 more visits than the same period last year, and for the full year has achieved 76% of the full year target for the site.
- 3.6 Coral Reef achieved around 10,000 fewer visits in Q4 compared to Q4 last year. However, it should be noted that the site was closed for a week in January to complete refurbishment works. In addition, the same period last year had high numbers as Coral Reef had recently re-opened after its refurbishment. Coral Reef has achieved 64% of its full year target. Despite this being below Everyone Active's stated targets for the site, Coral Reef still attracted 460k visitors over the past year.

### **Forward Look**

The current service plans have been refreshed and extended for the first two quarters of 2019/20 until September 2019. These are for People, Delivery and Central Directorates. Central Directorates incorporate Finance, Organisational Development, Transformation and HR, and Place, Planning and Regeneration. This will give sufficient time to develop a new Council Plan for 2019 – 2023 on which subsequent Service Plans will be based.

Timothy Wheadon Chief Executive

## **Section 2: Budget Position**

### **REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING**

The provisional end of year position for the General Fund indicates a potential under spend of -£2.528m. Details of individual variances are outlined in each department's Quarterly Service Report (QSR).

This net under spend comprises the following significant variances:

### Central

- The anticipated increase in passenger numbers following the opening of the regenerated town centre did not materialise resulting in an under spend on Concessionary Fares (-£0.288m).
- A reduction in external and internal audit fees within Finance (-£0.095m).
- Additional income for the administration of the Community Infrastructure Levy (-0.212m), for Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspaces (SANGS) capacity (-£0.051m) and from streets works permits and penalties (-£0.168m).

### Delivery

- An over spend on Industrial and Commercial Properties, primarily due to vacant properties across the portfolio (£0.205m) partly offset by an under spend on Construction and Maintenance (-£0.052m).
- An under spend in the Operations Unit primarily from reduced Home to School Transport costs and additional income (-£0.174m).
- The sale of Easthampstead Park Conference Centre was delayed resulting in additional costs being incurred (£0.308m).
- An under spend at the Look Out, primarily relating to equipment and additional income (-£0.117m) plus under spends within Customer Services on licences (-£0.072m) and within Member and Mayoral Services (-£0.031m).
- An under spend within Legal Services primarily from additional fee income (-£0.203m) and additional income at the Cemetery and Crematorium (-£0.082m).
- An under spend in ICT relating to licence and maintenance costs, equipment, mobile telephones and consultants fees (-£0.372m).
- An under spend on Waste Management resulting from a VAT adjustment and additional income (-£0.352m).
- The Car Parks under achieved on income (£0.357m) and additional running costs were incurred (£0.316m).
- An over spend on the leisure contract due to additional running costs and loss of income while repairs were carried out (£0.285m).
- Under spends on a number of other contract areas including street cleaning (-£0.030m), grounds maintenance (-£0.037m)
- An under spend on staffing budgets across the directorate due to a high number of vacancies (-£0.152m).

### People

• Within Children's Social Care there were additional costs as a consequence of an increase in the number of children being looked after, where 135 high cost care packages were required compared to 121 provided for in the budget. Care and

accommodation costs exceeded the budget ( $\pounds$ 0.085m following an allocation of  $\pounds$ 2.134m from the Contingency Fund) as did employee costs ( $\pounds$ 0.086m). The increase in court cases also contributed to additional Special Guardianship Orders ( $\pounds$ 0.073m). There were also increases in costs relating to foster care initiatives ( $\pounds$ 0.076m) and supporting families with no recourse to public funds ( $\pounds$ 0.060m). These costs were partly offset by under spends on care leavers maintenance grants and direct payments (- $\pounds$ 0.124m).

- An over spend within the Adult Community Team on residential costs and community services (£0.374m) partly offset by under spends within the team relating to staff vacancies (-£0.184m).
- Under spends within the Community Team for People with Learning Disabilities relating to staff vacancies and the Learning Disability Development Fund (-£0.137m).
- Under spends within Intermediate Care (-£0.191m), within Waymead due to additional income and staff vacancies (-£0.178m) and on the discretionary budget for grants and donations (-£0.126m).
- Within Housing, an under spend within Housing Strategy primarily due to the funding of the adaptions team from grant and vacant posts (-£0.170m), additional government grant and vacant posts within the Housing Benefits Team (-£0.215m) and recovery of Housing Benefit overpayments during the year resulting in additional net income (-£0.468m).
- An under spend on the Community Equipment budget primarily relating to resources from the Better Care Fund (-£0.139m)
- An under-achievement of income and additional costs within Forestcare (£0.103m).
- An over spend on directorate wide budgets due to delays in completing the Senior Leadership Restructure and additional transformation costs (£0.414m).

### Non-Departmental / Council Wide

- A significant under spend on interest budgets (-£3.369m). The considerable uncertainty surrounding BREXIT and the UK economy has been reflected in short-term interest rates remaining low which the Council has been able to take advantage of saving up to 1% on market rates. Additional income has been generated from the Pension Pre-payment and the loan to Downshire Homes Ltd. The remaining underspend has arisen from higher cash balances due to slippage on the Capital Programme, additional income from the Business Rates Pilot scheme and CIL, and the use of grants rather than borrowing to fund schemes. Part of this saving is expected to be one-off, with the remainder having been included in the 2019/20 budget.
- Internally funded capital expenditure was financed from internal borrowing to spread the cost impact on revenue. The capital expenditure charged to the General Fund budget was therefore not required (-£0.172m). Higher than forecast capital receipts in 2017/18 and significant capital carry forwards into 2018/19 helped to create an under spend against the Minimum Revenue Provision (-£0.415m).
- A net over-achievement of Business Rates income, primarily due to additional income from Section 31 grants and the Council's share of the surplus on the Central Government Levy Account (-£0.874m).
- An under spend on Council Wide budgets primarily relating to the purchase of commercial properties which has progressed more rapidly than originally anticipated allowing additional net savings to be generated in year (-£1.007m).
- The Council has been trying to reclaim VAT on leisure income for a number of years, arguing that the sale of sporting and leisure services should be exempt from VAT. The outcome of a court case last year which ruled in favour of a London council prompted the submission of a revised claim for overpaid VAT for the period 2010 to 2018. This claim proved successful (-£2.299m).

Earmarked Reserves

- Transfers into the Transformation (£2.060m), Structural Changes (£1.500m) and Town Centre (£1.150m) Reserves partly funded by the closure of the Commercial Properties Acquisition Reserve (-£0.125m).
- Creation of new reserves for Schools Support (£0.350m), IT Transformation (£1.000m), Feasibility Studies (£0.500m) and Community Capacity (£1.260m).

The final accounts will be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee in July.

A full review of all the variances arising in 2018/19 will be undertaken so that any variances that have an impact in 2019/20 and beyond can be identified and built into the Council's medium-term financial plans, where this has not already been taken into account.

## **Section 3: Strategic Themes**

## Value for money



Action	Stage	Due Date	% Completion	Status	Comments
1.1.01 Maintai	n Counci	Tax in the	lowest 10%	nation	ally of all unitary authorities
1.1.01 Maintain Council Tax	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	0	Achieved.
1.2 The cost,	quality an	d delivery	mechanism	of all s	ervices will be reviewed by 2019
1.2.05 Transformation review Citizen and Customer Contact	In Progress	31/03/2019	80%	G	Work continues to implement the customer contact principles across all services and all channels. A new transformation project is being scoped, with a view to continuing this roll-out in the coming year.
1.2.06 Transformation review Support Services	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%		Current focus is on increased use of self-service including DORIS. Recognised need to ensure developments reflect manager and staff priority areas. Particular focus on ensuring all HR policies and procedures are easily visible.
1.2.07 Monitor contracted-out leisure service	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	A	This period covers the final quarter of the first full year of the partnership with Everyone Active. Operational improvements have continued with the completion of the investment works at Bracknell leisure Centre and a new manager at Downshire Golf Complex.
1.2.08 Implement of library services review	In Progress	31/03/2019	60%	0	The budget savings required for 2018/9 have been met. Although self- service has been rolled out across all libraries, there has been a delay in the implementation of Open+ across all 9 sites. Binfield and Sandhurst Libraries have gone live with Open+, with the other Libraries to follow in Quarter 1.
1.2.09 Implementation of South Hill Park review	In Progress	31/03/2019	80%		The Trust continues to develop, and relations continue to be positive. Work is underway to develop a Service Level Agreement between the Trust and the Council.
1.2.11 Review of council properties and implement findings	In Progress	31/03/2019	99%	G	The Education Centre has completed the relocation to the Open Learning Centre. The review of the Commercial Centre is a project now being managed through the Transformation programme and progress is underway to relocate all non-depot users off site as a first phase of this project.

1.2.13 Transformation review of Parks and Countryside	In Progress	31/03/2019	25%		Work is now progressing on the Country Park with the first board meeting 2 <sup>nd</sup> April which reviewed the programme and various actions to be undertaken.
1.2.14 Transformation review of Planning and Building Control	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	6	Project now complete and has moved into Business as usual
1.2.17 Implement e- benefits/digital solution for welfare services	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%		This activity will be included as part of the accessibility review of all 3rd party website applications.
1.2.18 Review BFC Mychoice	In Progress	30/06/2018	0%		This action will be carried forward to next year. BFC MyChoice will be reviewed as part of the accessibility review of all 3 <sup>rd</sup> party websites, and along with a review of the CRM system.
1.2.19 Design and implement a People Directorate (T)	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	
1.2.20 Joint commercial development and early help	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	Our newly appointed Assistant Director Sarah Gee has taken up her post since the start of April 2019. Sarah along with her senior team are taking stock of current plans and revisiting the analysis available.
1.2.21 Joint commissioning and transformation function (T)	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	The development of a joint commissioning function is well underway. The future structure has been consulted on and currently vacancies are successfully being recruited to.
1.2.22 Strategic Emergency Planning Service		31/03/2019	100%	0	Preparations for a no deal Brexit have dominated the last quarter with two deadlines having passed. The Emergency Planning Unit continues to prepare plans and briefed senior Council Officers on likely scenarios related to a no deal.
1.2.23 SUEZ contract	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	This quarter has been spent finalising the contract extension which has now been complete
1.2.24 Review Transport Development and Highway Maintenance	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	0	First stages of the brining together of the two teams is now complete. Work on embedding the new structure and looking at efficiencies and savings will be part of the ongoing work of the section.
1.3 We charge additional inc		iately for se	ervices and	seek o	pportunities to generate

1.3.03 Open a 2nd Chapel at Easthampstead Park Cemetery and Crematorium.	Completed	30/06/2018	100%	G	Completed
1.3.05 Review School SLAs	In Progress	31/03/2019	80%	6	Can (Do) - our traded services with Schools, has been launched and is bringing in sales revenue as expected. Feedback has been positive from school. We continue to develop the full functionality of the Can (Do) site in partnership with customer and service lead input.
1.3.06 Implement the changes to the discretionary Home to School Transport service.	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	Contributions for discretionary HTST (Post 16) are now business as usual.
1.3.07 Implement the Commercial Property Investment Strategy	Completed	30/06/2018	100%	6	Approved budget fully invested therefore task and finish project complete. Monitor of stock now ongoing
1.3.08 Embed commercial practices	In Progress	31/12/2018	75%		Approach being adopted for Planning and Countryside review and School Support Services
1.4 Self-service	ce and the				This work will continue as part of the
improvements	Progress	31/03/2019	50%	G	accessibility review of all websites.
1.4.03 HR and Payroll self service	In Progress	31/12/2018	65%	<b>A</b>	All Schools now have access to iWorks including the Time and Mileage functionality. Work has begun on the introduction of Managers making changes directly into the system. This is at the early stages but should be fully tested by end of Q1 which will then be followed by a pilot roll out.
1.4.05 Organisational Development and Workforce Transformation Strategy	In Progress	31/03/2020	60%	G	The Workforce and Organisational Development Strategy Framework 2017-2020 is at the midpoint of delivery. The focus for this quarter has been in the following key areas: •Leadership and management - Introduced the coaching culture to organisational leaders •Strategic Workforce plan - The SWFP has been published and is now an organic document which is organisation wide and includes engagement between HR/OD service leaders Finance and Performance.

				<ul> <li>Recruitment and Retention - Work continues to develop the Bracknell Forest Brand which will support the attraction and retention of staff and further internal messaging to support Values and Behaviours.</li> <li>Staff Engagement and Reward and Recognition -The staff award ceremony held in January 2019 recognised staff for their contribution and achievement</li> </ul>
1.4.06 Library services enhancements	In Progress	31/12/2018	60%	<ul> <li>Self-service technology has been successfully implemented in all 9 libraries. Print management software is still only live in Bracknell Library and is due to be rolled out in Quarter 1. Implementation of Open+ technology is still behind schedule but has successfully gone live at Binfield and Sandhurst Libraries, and is being well used by the public. The delay with the rollout has largely been caused by issues with the doors. However, rollout is expected to be completed at the remaining 7 libraries by the end of Quarter 2.</li> </ul>
1.4.17 Apprenticeship	In Progress	31/03/2020	90%	The Apprentice programme has 64 apprentices in place with the programme being used as a tool to both recruit and retain key skills. The ability to recruitment quality new apprentices has been significantly enhanced by the introduction of a new pay structure for apprentices as agreed by the Employment Committee February 2019. As part of the workforce planning strategy, DMTs are being asked to identify roles that will be suitable for apprenticeships which will support an increase in the use of levy funding.
1.4.18 Learning and development opportunities	In Progress	31/03/2019	95%	Appropriate Courses continue to be delivered to ensure Adult and Children's Social Care meet their statutory obligations with regard to safeguarding and continuing development including Safeguarding courses for both Adults and Children's Social Care along with specific courses on Modern Slavery and Introduction to Domestic Abuse
1.4.19 Workforce development plans	Completed	30/06/2018	100%	The Workforce Development Plan has been completed. This will be reviewed on a regular basis.

1.5 Community involvement & the use of volunteers in the delivery of council services has increased						
1.5.01 Neighbourhood Plans	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	0	Examination commenced on Bracknell Town Neighbourhood Plan and examiner has requested a hearing. Warfield Neighbourhood Plan has been submitted and an examiner is in the process of being appointed. Crowthorne have commenced consultation on their draft Neighbourhood Plan and a BFC response is being prepared.	
1.5.03 Community based delivery and volunteers	In Progress	31/03/2020	0%	0	Community based delivery models and the use of volunteers continue to be considered within the analyse and plan phases of all transformation service reviews. Both the libraries and parks and countryside services have been successful in this approach.	
1.6 Resident a	and staff s	satisfaction	levels remain	ain higl	h	
1.6.03 Consultation on proposed major changes	In Progress	31/03/2020	0%	G	This action remains on track. Staff and customer consultation is planned into the Communications and Engagement Plan for all transformation projects.	
1.7 Spending	is within I	budget				
1.7.02 Budget savings	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	Identified savings achieved. All 2018/19 efficiency savings have been removed from departmental budgets	
1.7.04 Implement savings as identified for 2018-19. (T)	In Progress	31/03/2019	80%	A	Continue to track financial benefit of Transformation Programme	
1.7.21 Childrens Services Transformation Programme savings (T)	In Progress	31/03/2019	80%		Continue to track financial benefit of Transformation Programme	
1.7.22 Adult Social Care 2018-19 transformation savings commitments delivered (T)	In Progress	31/03/2019	46%		Final 18/19 in-year savings are £827k. However, due to pressures it should be noted that Adult Social Care costs are £320k higher than they were at 1 April 2018.	
1.7.23 Spending within budget	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	On track to come in within budget based on provisional outturn	
1.8 Surplus as	ssets are	sold				
1.8.01 Capital receipts targets	In Progress	31/03/2019	97%	G	All receipts anticipated for the financial year have been delivered.	

1. Valu	1. Value for money									
Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure Q3 2018/19	Current Figure Q4 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status					
L051	Percentage of current year's Council tax collected in year (Quarterly)	84.00%	98.40%	98.40%	G					
L053	Percentage of current year's Business Rates collected in year (Quarterly)	87.30%	103.1%	98.70%	G					
L221	Satisfaction level expressed in survey of contact with Customer Services, across all channels (Quarterly)	75.30%	77.2%	85.00%						
L257	Cumulative number of complaints received at stages 2 and 3, statutory social services complaints, and complaints referred by the Local Government Ombudsman (Quarterly)	133	193	N/A	N/A					
L261	Level of council wide staff sickness absence, including schools (Quarterly)	1.88	2.04	7.50	G					
L262	Level of council wide voluntary staff turnover, including schools (Quarterly)	3.28%	2.40	N/A	N/A					

1. Value for money								
Ind Ref	Short Description	Last Year 2017/18	This Year 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status			
L250	Band D council tax position amongst all English unitary authorities	7&	7%	10%	G			
L251	The value of saving achieved		£8,167,000	£9,500,000	A			
L254	% increase in rental income from the Commercial Property Investment Portfolio		2.1%	N/A	N/A			
L260	% of staff satisfied in their current job	58.0%	58.0%	60.0%	G			
L322	% of commercial property voids in the Commercial Property Investment Strategy		0.0%	N/A	N/A			
L323	Home to school transport client satisfaction	84.0%	87.5%	95.0%				

## A strong and resilient economy



Action	Stage	Due Date	% Completion	Status	Comments
2.1 The bor				nt busir	ness location
2.1.01 Business liaison programme	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	6	In the period January - March three meetings took place. The programme is now looking more towards SME's and high growth start-ups. Of the larger corporates a number of contacts have moved on making it more difficult to set up meetings with them at the current time. No major issues reported in the meetings with businesses, mainly parking and networking. The SME's were all keen to be signposted to relevant services and initiatives which has resulted in some new leads for our partner organisations.
2.1.02 SME Strategy	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	6	Working closely with the LEP as well as the Growth Hub. In addition, relationships with other organisations supporting SME's locally are maintained, including agents and the chamber. Attending the BLIS task & finish group and supporting where possible. Working closely with the new Growth hub liaison and talking to Oxford innovations about supporting their bid for supporting low productivity SME's to be more productive and effective.
2.1.03 Business Improvement District	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	6	Since the launch event in September 2018 a number of engagement workshops have taken place feeding information into the business plan stage to commence in spring. The financial situation has stabilised and businesses have put forward additional resources. It is likely that the BID consultant will also have to claim back some of the expenses once the levy is coming in. A number of engagement workshops took place in spring and the BID group will speak at the Lexicon business event in June and also hold another engagement event the week after.
2.1.05 Economic planning policies	In Progress	31/03/2020	75%	G	Further work is being undertaken on the implications of revised housing numbers and on the strategic approach to economic development which will include further consultation.
2.1.06 Infrastructure growth	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	G	CIL income for the year was £7,288,177 which represents 235% of the target. Over £7 million has also been received through S106 contributions. Audit has been completed of CIL and S106 and actions identified have been completed or

				are in hand including pursuing the purchase of an additional software modu (Exacom) to help monitoring of S106 income and expenditure.
2.1.07 Economic planning policies	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	Completed
2.2 The nev	v town cer	ntre opens	in 2017	
2.2.03 Transport infrastructure	Progress	31/03/2020	75%	Intelligent Transport infrastructure related to the town centre and The Lexicon continues to operate well. Highway capacity and road space allocation is considered proportionate. Monitoring and refinement work will continue as further town centre re-development progresses. Access for the range of transport modes remains effective.
2.2.04 Market Square strategy	Not Started	31/03/2019	0%	Work is on hold whilst the site is being used as a compound for the Thomas Homes scheme in the Town Centre
2.2.05 Public transport	In Progress	31/03/2020	75%	Bus operators report that patronage has increased moderately since the Lexicon opened. Alongside the extension of Council supported bus services to cover evenings and Sundays, bus operators have also introduced changes to their commercially funded services in respons to demand. Improved footway and cycleway links to the town centre are now in place and formalisation of the NCN422 cycle route will follow in 2020. Bracknell peak hour rail services are due to increase during May 2019. Cycle parking within th town centre has been increased by over 100%.
2.2.06 Planning applications		31/03/2019		Major, minor and other applications have exceeded performance targets for the ye and for the final quarter. The majors performance for the year was 82% overa against a target of 85%. This was due to the determination of some applications for which the applicants were not willing to agree extensions of time. The relatively low numbers of major applications determined means that a small number of falling outside the period have a significa effect on this statistic. During the year 45 Major applications were determined durin the year of which 40 were determined within the statutory period or within an agreed extension of time.
2.3 A thrivi	ng town c	entre is su	pported by	coordinated town centre management
2.3.01 Town centre	Completed	31/03/2020	100%	Town centre management is up and running with close liaison between BFC and the Lexicon staff. Work continues or

		1			1
management					Cleansing, Car parking and
strategy					performance/events and
					commercialisation programme.
2.3.02 Planning policies enabling regeneration	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	0	Town Centre Policies in the Draft Local Plan have been summarised and responded to and were considered and supported by the Members Working Group in October/November.
2.3.03 Town Centre Maintenance		31/03/2019		A	Further deep cleansing of paving took place at the end of March as part of the general spring clean. Pigeon proofing measures are being dealt with. The St Cleansing contractor is restructuring to give more robust supervision of cleanliness in the Town Centre.
2.5 Improvem	ients in stra	tegic infrast	ructure made	to reduc	ce congestion and improve traffic flows
2.5.01 Street lighting replacement	In Progress	31/03/2019	95%	0	The LED lighting project has seen the instalment of 13,000 new lanterns and 1,000 new columns, serving nearly 50,000 homes. The new LED lights have a new central management system. Once the final stages of installation are complete (spring 2019) engineers will commence a second phase of work to address the small number of residents' comments regarding operational issues.
2.5.02 Infrastructure delivery plan	Completed	31/03/2020	100%	0	Further work is under way to review infrastructure requirements in light of changes to the strategic approach to housing and economic development in light of the publication of the government's response to its consultation on housing needs.
2.5.03 Infrastructure funding	Completed	31/03/2020	100%	G	CIL target significantly exceeded for the year and over £9.3 million secured through S106 Agreements.

2. A strong and resilient economy									
Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure Q2 2018/19	Current Figure Q3 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status				
L265	Number of newly incorporated businesses (Quarterly)	216	156	N/A	N/A				
L268	Percentage of working age people who are unemployed (Quarterly)	3.0%	2.8%	N/A	N/A				
L269	Percentage of working age population in employment (Quarterly)	84.5%	85.0%	N/A	N/A				
L271	Percentage of the borough covered by Superfast broadband (Quarterly)	95.7%	95.7%	99.0%	G				

2. A strong and resilient economy								
Ind Ref	Short Description	Last Year 2017/18	This Year 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status			
NI167	Average journey times per mile during the morning peak on A roads	36.50%	36.90%	N/A	N/A			

## People have the life skills and education opportunities they need to thrive



Action	Stage	Due Date	% Completion	Status	Comments
3.1 Children h				years	provision
3.1.02 Two year olds childcare places	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	G	Spring actual funded 2's was 159 exceeding the estimate of 97. Summer estimate is 142.
3.1.03 Three & Four year olds 30 hour childcare places	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	No change in number of group providers delivering 30 hours this quarter. Childminder numbers delivering 30 hours has increased to 97/98. Sufficiency report now approved, work being undertaken to identify potential new sites as required.
3.1.04 Ofsted judgement at least good or outstanding for early help settings	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	G	2 settings remain at RI. 142 Childminders have a current OFSTED Grade. 139 are good or outstanding, 3 are RI. The inadequate CM was re- inspected and achieved a GOOD grade
3.1.05 Children's Centres	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	IT works to co-locate staff within Family Hubs is now complete. Staff are now collocated, building work will be undertaken in 2 hubs over the next few months to further develop multi-agency working.
3.2 School pla	aces are a	vailable in	all localities	6	
3.2.01 Pupil places (Capital Programme)	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	As at the offer day for secondary places for the September 2019 intake, of the 1,645 available places, 1,404 were taken leaving a surplus of secondary places of 241 or 15%. The primary offer day for the September 2019 intake does not occur until 16/04/19 but as at the end of the reporting period of the 1,485 places, 1,383 were proposed to be allocated leaving a surplus of primary places of 146 or 10%. Whilst these numbers may change over the coming weeks and months indications are that there will be sufficient school places for the September 2019 academic year.
3.2.02 Learning Village	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	A legal agreement for the final account for the construction contract is being drawn up. The building will remain in defects until July 2019. School admissions are underway to secure school places for both primary and secondary from September 2019.
3.2.03 Pupil places	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	Preparatory work for updated forecasts has been completed including a review and updated documentation of the

(Housing Developments)					system in the light of the outcomes of the external review and pupil yield surveys.
3.2.04 Infrastructure Delivery Plan	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	G	Improvements completed to Martins Heron Roundabout and work commenced on dualling final section of Downshire Way.
3.2.05 New education facilities	In Progress	31/03/2020	0%	٩	No change from previous quarter. Housing requirement has increased following government consultation on the methodology for calculating housing need but remains lower than that included in the Draft Local Plan consultation. Methodology and responsibility for generating pupil forecasts are being reviewed to improve accuracy.
3.2.06 Amen Corner North primary school	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	Construction of the new school is almost complete with handover programmed for June 2019. Commissioning with furniture & equipment and ICT is planned to be completed before the new school opens in September 2019. School admissions are underway to fill the 30 available places in the intake year from September 2019.
3.2.07 Crowthorne CE School (TRL)	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	Given the current and anticipated surplus of available primary school places in and around Crowthorne, construction of this new school in 2023 may not be required. The situation will be monitored and the programme for the proposed new school adjusted to keep paces for demand fro school places arising from the new housing on Bucklers Park.
3.3 More child	lren are a	ttending so	chools that a	are jud	ged as good or better
3.3.01 Ofsted judgement at least good or outstanding for schools	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	6	Improvements seen and target achieved. The overall total does remains below national. We continue to implement the Learning Improvement strategy. There are now 76% of schools who are judged to be good or better. We strive to be within the top quartile for schools judged to be good or better.
Commissioner		31/03/2019	100%	G	We continue to have a good working relationship with the Regional Schools Commissioner. We meet on a yearly basis and at the last meeting Bracknell Forest was described as the 'most improved LA within the South East'.
3.4 Levels of a	attainmen	t and pupi	l progress a	cross	all phases of learning are raised
3.4.01 Pupil Premium Grant	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	The Member-led Task and Finish completed its final report, making 12 recommendations. Staff participating in the Pan Berkshire Oracy Project have submitted their impact projects, and

3.5 Children 8 achieve their		eople from	n disadvanta	express of the pr Network Brackne key vehi	the schools involved have ed a wish to take part in Year 2 roject. The Pupil Premium Meeting, attended by 19 Il schools, continues to be a icle for sharing key messages.
3.5.02 Young Carers	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	BFC dat male, 8 support Schools undertal Specialit	re 184 young carers on the tabase. 98 are female, 86 are young carers receiving 1-1 from Targeted Youth Service. continue to receive support to ke the Young Carers Award. st Support Targeted Youth working across the Family
3.5.03 High Needs Block	In Progress	31/03/2019	50%	<ul> <li>are bein</li> <li>the est</li> <li>the High</li> <li>medium</li> <li>in partne</li> <li>the deli</li> <li>schools</li> <li>additiona</li> <li>urgent n</li> <li>reviewing</li> <li>to estab</li> <li>contract</li> <li>in place</li> <li>special s</li> <li>services</li> <li>Review</li> </ul>	ons from the High Needs Block g delivered via: tablishment of a sub group of Needs Block to determine the -term future of these resources ership with schools very of Hubs where selected have been able to secure al resource needed to meet the needs for a number of children. ng and developing specialist n within resources. g with the commissioning team lish robust and appropriate s and monitoring arrangements with resource provisions, the school, the PRU and contracted a delivering specialist support. of the top up banding lly at the higher level
3.5.04 NEETs	In Progress	31/03/2019	96.7%	1.2% of NEET a same gr that the were in a	nd of March 2019, a total of 16 and 17 year olds were nd the activity for 2.1% of the roup was unknown. This meant 96.7% of 16 and 17 year olds a positive destination of either on, Employment or Training.
3.5.05 Emotional Health and Well Being Action Plan for young people	In Progress	31/03/2019	25%	staff from our collect identify of ways of 'Thrive' in school Every so least on Support training Psycholo support	s have taken place between m Education and Learning and eagues in Public Health to common work streams and collaborating. The work on the website to support colleagues ols is ongoing. chool in Bracknell now has at e ELSA (Emotional Literacy Assistant) who received from the Educational ogy Service; EPs continue to the work of ELSAs by providing group supervision. Further

					training to for new ELSAs to be offered for the 19/20academic year.
					Senior leaders have been liaising with colleagues within the CCG to decide on priorities and how joint working can take place. There is now a clear direction in that the E Berkshire CCG has restarted plans to develop 'Mental Health Support Teams'. First steps are to identify schools by taking a threshold approach to identify areas of greatest need. we intend this to be joined up piece of work with the EH Family Hubs. a handbook has been sent to schools summarises the Thrive model in an easier read model to enable a more reflective approach to whole school practice.
3.5.08					The contract for this work has now
Cornerstone	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	A	concluded
3.6 Children & potential	young peo	ple with Sp	ecial Education	onal Ne	eds are supported to achieve their
3.6.01 Implement Special Educational Needs (SEND) legislation	In Progress	31/03/2019	60%		The department has been working with schools to ascertain how we can improve practice and outcomes for children at SEN Support. Re- emphasising the graduated approach as per the Code of Practice, workshops have been scheduled over ths summer terms with primary and secondary heads to review and shape what mainstream provision could be for children at SEN Support; commissioning support for children with challenging behaviour and reviewing specialist provision through our resource settings (e.g. The Rise@GHC).
3.6.02 Special Educational Needs achieving a Good Level of Development at the end of EYFS	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%		Data available after EYFS profile summer 2019
3.7 All young p training	eople who	have left so	chool go on t	o furthe	er education, find employment or
3.7.01 Care leaver accommodation	In Progress	31/03/2019	60%	G	2 blocks now completed. 3rd block underway. Access to all reserved high needs beds for care leavers now available
3.7.02 Care leavers EET	In Progress	31/03/2019	60%	0	From the Former Relevant cohort (18 - 21 year old Care Leavers), 60% (35 out of 58) were in either education, employment or training. There are at least 7 who are directly engaging with

				various services and looking to secure a similar outcome. From the remaining 16 who are NEET, the main barriers range from mental health needs, maternity or a lack of engagement. We continue to support each young person to develop their capacity to engage and progress to a positive destination.
3.7.03 Elevate Project	In Progress	31/03/2019	93%	<ul> <li>The delivery of Elevate as a part funded EUSIF project will come to an official end in June 2019. However, there will be a lag in the actual delivery ending which is anticipated to continue until October 2019. Due to strict compliance requirements, there have been consistent difficulties in meeting all of the requirements of the collective Berkshire programme. We are working with local partners to ensure there is a smooth transition of service during this period so that schools and young people do not experience any disruption.</li> </ul>

Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure Q3 2018/19	Current Figure Q4 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status
L139	% of schools rated good or better: Schools	68%	76%	76%	G
L325	Number of permanent exclusions: Schools	2	2	N/A	N/A
L326	Number of fixed period exclusions: Schools	278	273	N/A	N/A
L237	Number of apprenticeships starts for 16-24 year olds through City Deal interventions	2	2	5	ß
NI117	% of 16 and 17 year olds not in education, employment or training	2.2% 1.2%		7.5%	G
L139	% of schools rated good or better: Academy Primary Schools	40% 40%		50%	B
L325	Number of permanent exclusions: Academy Primary Schools	0 0		N/A	N/A
L326	Number of fixed period exclusions: Academy Primary Schools	27 22		N/A	N/A
L139	% of schools rated good or better: Academy Secondary Schools	67%	100%	60%	G
L325	Number of permanent exclusions: Academy Secondary Schools	1 2		N/A	N/A
L326	Number of fixed period exclusions: Academy Secondary Schools	47 45		N/A	N/A
L139	% of schools rated good or better: Maintained Primary Schools	74% 80%		89%	R
L325	Number of permanent exclusions: Maintained Primary Schools	0	0	N/A	N/A

L326	Number of fixed period exclusions: Maintained Primary Schools	22	24	N/A	N/A
L139	% of schools rated good or better: Maintained Secondary Schools	67%	80%	100%	ß
L325	Number of permanent exclusions: Maintained Secondary Schools	1	0	N/A	N/A
L326	Number of fixed period exclusions: Maintained Secondary Schools	182	182	N/A	N/A

3. People have the life skills and education opportunities they need to thrive							
Ind Ref	Short Description	Last Year 2017/18	This Year 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status		
L272	% of children obtaining a place at one of their Primary School preferences	99%	99% 97%		G		
L273	% of children obtaining a place at one of their Secondary School preferences	98%	93%	93%			
L274	% of admissions appeals which are upheld - Infant	0.0%	% 0.0% 0.0%		G		
L275	% of admissions appeals which are upheld - Primary	37.5%	% 0.0% (		G		
L276	% of admissions appeals which are upheld - Secondary	5.9%	22.2%	N/A	N/A		
L349	Overall rate of permanent exclusions from all secondary schools	-	0.09 (16/17)	0.20	G		
L350	Overall rate of permanent exclusions from all primary schools	-	0.00 (16/17)	0.03	G		
L351	Rate of fixed period exclusions from all secondary schools	-	9.33 (16/17)	9.40	G		
L352	Rate of fixed period exclusions from all primary schools	-	2.10 (16/17)	1.37	R		
L353	% of non-council pre-school provision judged good or outstanding by Ofsted	-	93.8%	N/A	N/A		
L361	% of children obtaining their first preference of Primary School	91%	94%	84%	G		
L362	% of children obtaining their first preference of Secondary School	88%	83%	79%	G		

## People will live active and healthy lifestyles



Action	Stage	Due Date	% Completion	Status	Comments	
4.1 Numbers of adults and young people participating in leisure and sport is increased						
4.1.02 Young People in Sports Scheme	In Progress	31/07/2019	0%		Attendances for Q4 totalled 7,200 (10,650 last year). The scheme ran one less event (2,000 attendances) and also saw fewer schools taking up in-school coaching sessions in comparison to this period last year too (1,400 less). The total for the year was 24,780 (27,600 last year).	
4.1.03 Bracknell Leisure Centre capital improvement works	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	This quarter has seen the completion of the internal works related to the refurbishment. This has included wet changing rooms, café and fitness studios.	
4.1.04 Downshire Golf Complex development	Completed	31/12/2018	100%	٩	Further proposals are currently with Everyone Active for review and discussion.	
4.3 Comprehen in place	sive publi	ic health p	rogrammes	aimed	at adults and young people, are	
4.3.01 Online counselling for young people	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	3	The Kooth service is well established and well used by those young people who prefer to talk about their emotional wellbeing anonymously but safely in an online environment. We are planning to extend the contract until September this year after which the CCG will procure an online counselling service for all of East Berkshire, as part of the CAMHS local transformation plan. We have successfully recruited 15 young people as Young Health Champions and they are currently undergoing their training.	
4.3.04 Promote sustainable travel	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	0	Officers are finalising the Local Cycling Walking Infrastructure Plan and prioritising routes following assessment across the borough. In addition Parish Councils have expressed an interest in joint working to allocate their CIL funds to ped/cycle routes that both authorities want to bring forward.	
4.3.05 Facilitate/promote health improvement schemes		31/03/2019	100%	6	Everyone Active have continued to share Public Health messages and event information on social media. They are also continuing discussions about the potential to host a Public Health community expo event in	

					Summer 2019, the outcome being to build upon the work of the Public Health team in attempting to improve community engagement and showcase things that an individual can do to combat loneliness and social isolation. Contact has also been made with Get Berkshire Active, who have restructured by introducing new Relationship Managers that will liaise with the full range of council departments (and leisure providers) in trying to increase levels of activity.
4.3.06 Support resident run community groups	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	G	This quarter we installed the 4 community kiosks at different locations across the borough (as part of the SCDIP project, funded by the LGA/NHS Digital)). The development of the kiosks involved us engaging with 60 individual community groups so that they could feature on the kiosks, in order to promote them to kiosk users. By the end of the project on 22 March, the kiosks recorded over 750 views and of the 274 people surveyed, approximately 70% found the kiosk easy to use and the same proportion said the information they saw was useful. Next quarter we will move the kiosks to other locations around the borough and improve the kiosk experience in the light of feedback from residents.
4.3.07 Health improvement services	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	0	We continue to provide a successful 12-week free slimming on referral service from Slimming World for adults with a BMI of 30 and over. An average of 36 people per month are referred by GPs and community referrers. Our physical activity classes (Fit for All) continue to be well attended and from next quarter we will be offering a new seated exercise class Dance for All. The in- house stop smoking service continues to grow and we are in the process of reviewing our performance in this first year.
4.3.08 Digital services supporting healthy and active lives	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	The public health portal is in the process of being refreshed and redesigned to make it more user- friendly. We will then use our social media network to promote the new site to residents and professionals. We have also consulted with schools to help us design a new children's health and wellbeing website, aimed at teachers and parents, that supports schools in delivering the

					new PSHE content. We are co- designing this with PSHE leads and young people.
4.3.09 Enhance the emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	6	We continue to support work being led by the CCG around the CAMHS Local Transformation Plan. Thom Wilson (commissioning) and PH represent early help and prevention in Bracknell Forest on the core East Berks group. A new prevention & resilience task and finish group is due to meet for the first time on 8 April. The Young Health Champions project delivered by the PH team has started, with 15 young people recruited from 3 secondary schools. The young people are being trained to RSPH level 2. The young people will be supported to set up wellbeing groups to raise awareness of emotional wellbeing and run health improvement campaigns in the schools.
4.4 Personal cho	ices availa	ble to allow	v people to liv	e at ho	me are increased
4.4.11 Acquisitions of suitable properties	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	0	Completed
4.4.13 Holly House capital funding	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	Works completed to schemes
4.4.14 Accommodation for people with learning disabilities	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	0	Final property for Q4 going to DMT 7/5/19 for agreement to sign the lease between BFC & Places for People. The partnership between the LA & Housing Provider is very proactive and working well.
4.4.15 Overpayment recovery contract	Completed	30/04/2019	100%	G	Contract in place until April 2020
4.4.17 Housing options for older people	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	0	Work is progressing with neighbouring local authorities to agree how to work jointly to deliver a joint strategy for housing with support for older people.
4.4.18 Housing options for people with learning disabilities	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%		A review of the need for accommodation with support and care for adults with a learning disability is now part of the Adult Transformation Programme. An Analyse Phase for this project is due to be completed in Q1 2019/20.
4.6 Integration of increased	council ar	nd health se	ervices care p	athway	rs for long term conditions is
4 6 01 DAAT	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	A total of 31 cards were activated during the year. 56% were drug users. people aged between 30-34

					formed the largest group of users of the resource (38.5%), 50% of users were female and 84.6% classed themselves as white British. The retention rate for people being actively engaged with treatment was 88.5%, Of the 31 users of the resource 73.9% had completed treatment with the remainder still engaged with the community service. The percentage of people accessing the service outside of normal working hours was 73.7% with Wednesday and Friday being the busiest days of the week.
4.6.02 Breaking Free (DAAT Online)	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	Completed
4.6.10 Identify suitable venues to make substance misuse services more accessible	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	6	Completed
4.6.11 Delayed transfers of care and hospital avoidance	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	Completed
4.6.12 Integrated health and care workforce development plans	In Progress	31/03/2019	20%	6	Currently working with the CCG and neighbouring local authorities to develop our plans
4.7 Accessibilit adults is improv		ilability of	mental heal	th serv	vices for young people and
4.7.02 Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)	In Progress	31/03/2019	20%		Young Health Champions: a meeting to gather young people's views will take place on 15th May. This is set up by the CCG and Frank Glennon will be representing the LA. Please see 3.5.05 for related actions. The development of the Mental Health Support Teams is designed to help schools develop their whole school practice and meet the needs of children presenting with mild to moderate MH needs. This is intended to improve the early intervention offer and prevent the escalation of children to Tier 3 CAMHS, hence it is a Health initiative, with funding through the CCG but may ultimately sit within and have support from the LA.
4.7.06 Support individuals with	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	This Services is fully established and operational across adults and older

Mental Health needs					adults, this has on going monitoring, but no further action required.				
4.8 Learning op	4.8 Learning opportunities are available for adults								
4.8.01 Digital Inclusion activities	In Progress	31/03/2019	40%	A	Work is in progress to map all existing support for digital inclusion in the borough, and to identify opportunities for working with partners to enhance the offer.				
4.8.02 Quality Improvement Plan	In Progress	31/03/2019	50%	G	Quality Improvement Plan continues to be monitored by Community Learning Management Board. Awaiting next monitoring event in April 2019.				
4.8.03 Annual learning offer	Completed	01/07/2019	100%	G	Three terms of adult learning courses have been planned and published. Two out of three terms have been delivered. Work to plan 2019/20 has started.				

4. People live active and healthy lifestyles									
Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure Q3 2018/19	Current Figure Q4 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status				
L003	Number of visits to leisure facilities	1,014,058	1,332,208	1,702,710	®				
L015	Number of attendances for junior courses in leisure	115,929	156,410	135,000	G				
L030	Number of lifelines installed in the quarter	311	304	230	G				
L031	% of lifeline calls handled in 60 seconds in the quarter	97.78%	98.11%	97.50%	0				
L278	% of adult social care records in the Adult Social Care records with NHS number	97.6%	97.1%	98.0%	G				
L279	Number of young people who are engaging with KOOTH	3,159	3,346	2,150	G				
L280	% of young people who receive a response from KOOTH within 2 hours	95.0%	100.0%	100. 0%	G				
L281	Number of individual clients attending Youthline	379	499	N/A	N/A				
L309	Number of community groups worked with by Public Health	193	206	81	G				
L310	Number of people accessing online Public Health services via the Public Health portal (Quarterly)	4,009	4,896	3,200	3				
L311	Number of people actively engaged with Public Health social media channels (Quarterly)	2,693	2,746	2,700	0				
L359	% of people using social care who receive direct payments	45.7%	45.6%	47.4%	G				
L360	% of adults with learning disabilities in paid employment	9.8%	10.1%	N/A	N/A				

# A clean, green, growing and sustainable place



Action	Stage	Due Date	% Completion	Status	Comments
5.1 A Local Pla spaces is in pla	n that pro				nd protects important open
5.1.01 Local Plan	In Progress	31/03/2021	50%	G	Local Plan is progressing in line with the new Local Development Scheme adopted by the Executive in February 2019.
5.1.02 Housing sites	In Progress	31/03/2020	75%	G	The Council can demonstrate a 5- year land supply with sites coming forward through the planning process
5.2 The right lev	vels and t	ype of hou	using are bot	th appr	oved and delivered
5.2.02 Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA)	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	The government has published its revised methodology which confirms that this should continue to be based on 2014 household projections rather than the more recent 2016 projections. The government has committed to produce a revised methodology for calculating housing need within 18 months. This has increased housing need above the 2016 based figures but they remain lower than those used for the Draft Local Plan consultation. Figures are being updated following the end of 2018/19.
5.2.03 Thames Basin Heath Special Protection Area	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	0	The SPA SPD continues to be implemented to enable housing development to proceed. BFC continues receive increased facilitation funds for the use of its SANG capacity and is on target to achieve the projected income from this source. The new SANG at Blue Mountain has been laid out.
5.2.05 Support housing delivery via Council's land holdings		31/03/2019		6	Housing delivery is being supported through the work of a potential joint property venture with three core sites in the town centre now identified.
5.3 Appropriate	infrastru	cture deve	elopment is o	comple	ted to support housing growth
5.3.01 Transport improvement	In Progress	31/03/2020	50%	6	The Transport Capital Programme continues to incorporate Borough led transport improvements which result from new development and the strategic transport action plan, currently focussed towards the A322, A329 and A3095 strategic corridors. Local junctions and corridors will also be improved as development growth is delivered. Developer led

<b>F</b>		· · · · · ·		1 1
				improvements continue to be managed through the S106 and S278/38 processes.
5.3.03 Community Hubs	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	<ul> <li>Warfield CH - the feasibility study is complete and we are finalising the Final Report with Ridge. Crowthorne CH - CPC are in discussions with L&amp;G around the final plans and running costs. BM CH - work still ongoing with BPC and the CCG. A MoU is being developed so that they can work with an architect to develop plans for the co-located centre. MHWCC - WPC requested some works at the centre before agreeing to complete the lease and we have completed these.</li> </ul>
5.4 Neighbourh	ood Plans	s & Comm	unity Infrast	ructure Levy (CIL) are in place
5.4.01 Spending priorities	In Progress	31/03/2020		Work continues on identifying spending priorities and working with Parish councils on joint projects particularly in relation to Transport, open space and community provision.
5.4.02 Neighbourhood Planning Referendums	Waiting	31/03/2019	0%	There are currently no neighbourhood planning referendums.
5.6 Resident sa	tisfaction	levels wit	h parks and	open spaces is maintained
5.6.01 Special Protection Area (SPA)	In Progress	31/03/2020	75%	Open space enhancements carried out on a rolling basis which are pump prime funded from s106 facilitation receipts in line with individual SANG management plans and reflecting forthcoming development pressure.
5.7 Cleanliness	of the bo	rough is n	naintained to	defined environmental standards
5.7.01 Public realm land	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	Areas monitored generally met standards but there have been some issues in March with leaves not cleared in some areas. The contractor has lost some staff to other contracts and is finding it difficult to recruit replacements.
5.8.01 Recycling	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	Waste statistics always received 3 months in arrears so information is until Q3 only. Recycling year to date continues to be below target but amount landfilled is on target.
5.8.03 Waste collection contract	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	Extension of waste collection contract with SUEZ commences 1 April 2019. Good Progress being made with CORE system working with Customer Services. All other changes commence 1 July when all new vehicles are delivered.

5. A clean, green, growing and sustainable place									
Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure Q3 2018/19	Current Figure Q4 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status				
L178	Number of household nights in B&B accommodation	684	330	754	G				
L241	Income from CIL receipts	1,745,487	2,807,000	N/A	N/A				
L284	Number of homes given planning permission (Quarterly)	1,090	1,122	670	G				
L286	Percentage of successful planning appeals (Quarterly)	57.0%	67.0%	66.0%	G				
L312	Number of families that have been in Bed & Breakfast accommodation for over 6 weeks	0	0	0	G				
L313	Number of families that have been in non Bed & Breakfast accommodation for over 6	1	4	14	G				
L316	% of Lifeline demos/installs within 7 days of customer request	98.0%	98.5%	95.0%	G				
L348	Number of residents subscribing to the recycling reward scheme	15,458	15,672	15,300	G				
L356	% of major planning applications determined within timescales	88%	92%	85%	G				
L357	% of minor planning applications determined within timescales	97%	87%	85%	G				
L358	% of other planning applications determined within timescales	95%	94%	90%	G				
NI181	Number of days to process Housing Benefit or Council Tax Benefit	8	0	8	G				
NI192	% of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting	40.1% (Q2)	39.9% (Q3)	43.0%	G				
NI193	% of municipal waste land filled	16.4% (Q2)	16.2% (Q3)	18.00%	G				

5. A clean, green, growing and sustainable place									
Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure 2017/18	Current Figure 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status				
L285	Satisfaction with parks and open spaces	-	95%	90%	G				
L347	Planning permissions granted for net additional dwellings not yet implemented	-	1,122	N/A	N/A				
NI168	% of principal roads where maintenance should be considered	4%	4%	5%	G				
NI169	% of non-principal classified roads where maintenance should be considered	2%	2%	4%	G				

# Strong, safe, supportive and self-reliant communities



Action	Stage	Due Date	% Completion	Status	Comments
6.1 Levels of vo	olunteerin	g and com	munity action	on in th	he borough are increased
6.1.02 Community self reliance	In Progress	31/03/2020	0%		This work is currently on hold due to changes in personnel and will be progressed in April 2019.
6.1.04 Website redevelopment	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	G	The redevelopment of the website was completed. We are now working on ongoing improvements to the site and will be carrying out a further review before the move to Drupal 8.
6.2 High levels	of commu	inity cohe	sion are mai	ntaine	d
6.2.02 Prevent agenda	In Progress	31/03/2020	0%	G	The Prevent action plan addresses issues of community cohesion. This action plan is monitored by the Prevent steering group.
6.2.04 'All of Us' Equality Scheme	In Progress	31/03/2020	0%	G	Annual monitoring of the 18/19 action plan completed with strong evidence of successful delivery of the plan. The annual report has now been published.
6.4 Safeguardir established	ng structu	res to safe	eguard child	ren and	d vulnerable adults are well-
6.4.03 Advocacy Services for children	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	0	Independent Advocacy continues to be offered to support young people to have their voices heard. It is available for young people involved in child protection, for children looked after, care leavers and young people who wish to make a complaint. No of YP who have used the advocacy service in Q4 (2018-2019) No of children/yp 41 No of families 32 No of on-going cases (per family) 19 No of new referrals received Q1 (per family) 13
6.4.05 Pay and Workforce Strategy	Completed	31/03/2019	100%	C	There are currently 7 vacancies for children social workers as at 31 March 2019 providing a vacancy rate of (8.9%). Further work is being undertaken over the recruitment processes and employment branding to see where improvements can be achieved through our recruitment activities. The newly qualified teacher pool (NQT) has provided less candidates than previous years with 4 appointments have been made from

				this strategy as this stage. Headteacher recruitment has been						
				successful during the period with three successful appointments being						
				confirmed.						
6.5 Early assessment to identify children & young people with additional needs & provide early help										
6.5.01 Transition				The continued development of Family Hubs is supporting effective step						
between Early Help and	In	31/03/2019	0%	up/step down processes. This will be further enhanced over the coming						
specialist	Progress	51/03/2019	0 78	year with the introduction of one front						
services				door and new improved processes for						
6.6 Prevention	of harm. r	educe crir	ne and disor	allocation. rder and make the town centre safe						
				The DASC (Domestic Abuse Service						
				Coordination) group continues to meet monthly regarding repeat standard/medium risk cases. Data for Q4 is still pending. 2019 will see the roll out/integration with the DASC of MATAC (Multi Agency Tasking & Coordination) group, looking at different ways of working with serial victims. More focussed way of selection, using RFG (Recency, Frequency, Gravity) rather than risk levels. A clear pathway of options for the panel (attendance is the same as at MARAC), aim is to get the RFG score down.						
6.6.02 Domestic Abuse multi- agency meetings	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	<ul> <li>MARAC (Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference), chaired by TVP continues to meet every four weeks. 23 cases discussed in Q4 – 39% repeat rate as at March 2019. Of the referrals, 15 (65%) referred by Police, 6 (26%) referred by Children's Social Care, 2 (9%) referred by Adults Social Care. Of the victims, 3 (13%) were from BME communities, 2 (9%) were LGBT cases, 1 (4%) had a disability, 2 (9%) were males. There were no victims or perpetrators under the age of 18 years old. DA Coordinator has drafted an updated MARAC Operating Protocol for Designated MARAC Officers which will go to the DA Exec end of April 2019, and the MARAC Chair has revised the Information Sharing Agreement which is currently with Designated MARAC Officers for each agency to sign.</li> </ul>						
6.6.03 Crime and disorder	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	In Q4, 6 cases have been resolved at the Partnership Problem-Solving Group						

6.6.04 Multi- agency offender management meetings	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	G	Monthly Integrated Offender Management (IOM) panel meetings continue to be used to prioritise, update and manage our local prolific offenders. Weekly practitioner meetings identify emerging risks and blockages which is supported by BFC, Police, and Probation.
6.6.05 Prevent	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	0	Quarterly activity includes monitoring and disseminating changes to practice, policy and risk both domestic and international, distribution of the daily RICU (Research Information Communication Unit) report, development and maintenance of relationships with dedicated local prevent officers and Counter Terrorism Policing and managing any referrals to the Channel process in partnership with Counter Terrorism Policing (South East). The Channel Chair also attended a best practice conference on 22/03/19.
6.6.06 Lexicon safety	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	G	In Q4, 4 cases were resolved at the Town Centre Partnership Problem- Solving Group. A BBAC Steering Group has also been set up to oversee the BBAC Forum. These meetings are due to be held quarterly and will be attended by the Lexicon Management, Community Safety and Police.
6.6.07 Support residents at risk of exploitation	In Progress	31/03/2019	0%	<u>A</u>	A further 120 BFC partners and practitioners were trained to recognise the signs of modern slavery and exploitation at 4 training sessions in March 2019. Total now trained: 300. 'Victims First - Willow Project' support for victims, their friends and family members as well as practitioner support is available in Bracknell Forest. Contact details and referral forms are being widely circulated through the training as well as the Modern Slavery Strategic Task and Finish Group.

6. Strong, safe, supportive and self-reliant communities						
Ind Ref	Short Description	Previous Figure Q3 2018/19	Current Figure Q4 2018/19	Current Target	Current Status	
L092	Number of children on protection plans	108	130	100	R	
L161	Number of looked after children	154	158	115	ß	

L185	Overall crime	4,761	6,406	N/A	N/A
L202	Number of families turned around through Family Focus Project	21	41	20	G
L203	Number of Referrals to Early Intervention Hub	98	120	146	G
L204	Number of CAFs and Family CAFs undertaken	44	58	40	ß
L242	Number of cases that step up to Children's Social Care	7	11	N/A	N/A
L243	Number of cases that step down from Children's Social to Early Intervention Hub	40	43	N/A	N/A
L287	Number of children in need supported under Section 17 of the Children Act (	722	742	630	R
L288	Number of foster carers recruited	8	11	20 (Annual target)	®
L289	Average caseload per children's social worker	14.9	15.9	16.0	G
L290	Rate of referral to children's social care	220.2	200.9	N/A	N/A
L346	Average caseload for Family Safeguarding Model	15	17	13	G
NI062	% of looked after children with 3 or more placements	17.5%	19.6%	10.0%	A
NI063	% of CLA aged <16 and in care for 2.5 yrs, in the current placement for 2+ yrs	57.1%	64.4%	60.0%	G

**Note:** Details of the annual indicators not being reported on this quarter are contained within the departmental quarterly service reports (QSRs).

## **Section 4: Corporate Health**

### a) Summary of People

#### Staff Turnover

Department	Previous Figure*	For the last 4 quarters	Notes
People		11.3%	
Delivery		15.6%	
Finance		3.8%	
PPR		9.3%	
OD, Transformation and HR		12.4%	
Chief Executive's Office		0%	
Total Voluntary Turnover	14.9%	11.7%	

\* This figure relates to the previous 4 quarters and is taken from the preceding CPOR.

Comparator data	%
Total voluntary turnover for BFC, 2017/18:	10.3%
Average voluntary turnover rate UK public sector 2016:	10.0%
Average Local Government England voluntary turnover 2016:	14.0%

(Source: XPertHR Staff Turnover Rates and Cost Survey 2014 and LGA Workforce Survey 2013/14)

**Note:** This is the second quarter we have reported against the new Directorates. As a result we don't have a breakdown for the previous figure column.

#### **Staff Sickness**

Department	Quarter 4 2018/19 (days per employee)	Previous Financial Year (Actual Average days per employee)	2018/19 Annual Average (days per employee)	Notes
People	2.46		9.06	
Delivery	1.61		6.46	
Finance	3.88		14.26	
PPR	1.72		4.63	
OD, Transformation and HR	2.31		8.34	
Chief Executive's Office	0.58		4.7	
Total staff sickness excluding maintained schools	1.81	7.03	7.95	

Comparator data	All employees, average days sickness absence per employee
Bracknell Forest Council 17/18	7.03 days
All local government employers 2017	8.50 days

(Source: Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development Absence Management Survey)

**Note:** This is the second quarter we have reported against the new Directorates. As a result we don't have a breakdown for the previous financial year column.

# b) Summary of Complaints

Department	Type of complaint	Q1	Q2	Q3	Q4	Total cumulative complaints	Outcome of all complaints received year to date
People: Adults & Housing	Statutory	17	28	22	29	96	<ul> <li>15 – upheld/fully substantiated</li> <li>24 – partially upheld/partially</li> <li>substantiated</li> <li>56 – not upheld/not substantiated</li> <li>1 – no finding made</li> </ul>
	Local Government Ombudsman	1	0	0	0	1	1 – not upheld/not substantiated
People: Childrens	Statutory stage 1	26	27	25	29	107	<ul> <li>2 – in progress</li> <li>3 – upheld/fully substantiated</li> <li>33 – partially upheld/partially</li> <li>substantiated</li> <li>56 – not upheld/not substantiated</li> <li>8 - no finding made</li> <li>5 – proceeded to stage 2</li> </ul>
	Statutory stage 2	1	2	2	0	5	<ul> <li>2 – in progress</li> <li>2 – partially upheld/partially</li> <li>substantiated</li> <li>1 – not upheld/not substantiated</li> </ul>
	Statutory stage 3	1	0	2	0	3	<ol> <li>1 – upheld/fully substantiated</li> <li>2 – partially upheld/partially substantiated</li> <li>*These cases started in 2017/18 but resolved in 2018/19.</li> </ol>
	Stage 2	0	0	0	0	0	
	Stage 3	0	0	0	0	0	
	Local Government Ombudsman	0	0	0	2	2	1 – premature 1 – not upheld/not substantiated
Central	Stage 2	5	2	4	0	11	<ol> <li>partially upheld/partially</li> <li>substantiated</li> <li>not upheld/not substantiated</li> <li>proceeded to stage 3</li> </ol>
	Stage 3	2	1	1	0	4	<ul> <li>1 – partially upheld/partially</li> <li>substantiated</li> <li>3 – not upheld/not substantiated</li> </ul>
	Local Government Ombudsman	0	0	0	0	0	
Delivery	Stage 2	0	2	3	1	6	<ul> <li>1 – upheld/fully substantiated</li> <li>1 – partially upheld/partially</li> <li>substantiated 4 – not upheld/not</li> <li>substantiated</li> <li>2 – proceeded to stage 3</li> </ul>
	Stage 3	0	0	2	0	2	2 – not upheld/not substantiated
	Local Government Ombudsman	0	0	0	0	0	

### c) Strategic Risks and Audits

The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed by the Corporate Management Team, Governance and Audit Committee and Strategic Risk Management Group on 16<sup>th</sup> January, 30<sup>th</sup> January and 7February 2019 respectively. The key changes agreed in the quarter were to:

- Reduce the transformation risk following a fundamental review which reprioritised projects and the alignment of resources to address those priorities;
- Reduce the staffing risk following appointments made to vacant senior officer posts;
- Include an overarching Brexit risk to replace the global economy risk;
- Reduce the demand for services risk there is now flexibility in the Council budget to respond to changes in demand; and
- Increase the information security risk.

This page is intentionally left blank

### Status Report to Overview and Scrutiny (O&S) Commission -September 2019

### Adult Social Care, Health and Housing (ASCHH) O&S Panel

#### Situation (where we are now)

- A meeting was held with Tina Stevenson (Chief Executive Officer) and Geoff Smith (Chair of Trustees) of Bracknell Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB), to establish current overlaps between issues raised at CAB and services provided by Bracknell Forest Council, whereby it was agreed to include CAB in discussions, where relevant.
- Public engagement with the scrutiny process was undertaken with a good / high degree of success, as evidenced by an article in the local newspaper (Bracknell News) and feedback from those taking part in the workshop, at the end of the last Panel meeting, which included Officers and members of the public.
- A detailed set of prioritised recommendations arose from the workshop, for the Commission to consider, although the primary areas of concern remain the Integrated Care System (ICS) and the Bracknell Forest Housing Strategy. Within these two primary themes were enough topic areas for scrutiny, over the current period of administration, from 2019 to 2023, at least (see Amalgamated Topics Selection List).
- An update was received at the last ASCHH Panel meeting on 05 September, in relation to the ASCHH Transformation Programme out turn and with the single exception of the necessary permits, from the Environment Agency, in relation to the doorstep collection of sharps bins (previously reported), there are no open working groups, no further work has been commissioned and the work programme for the Panel is completed (see the Actions Log from ASCH&H O&S Panel Minutes).
- The Annual Healthwatch report was also circulated direct to Panel members, on 23 July and more widely, via Democracy Snapshot, to all elected Members
- Following a request from the O&S Commission, all meetings have maintained a single issue focus and the Panel is now awaiting the outcome of the forthcoming review of 'statutory' guidance (i.e. CMT / Executive meetings and O&S discussions on 24 September) and for any changes to scrutiny to take effect.

#### Objectives (where we want to be)

Panel members are ready to be fully integrated into the revised O&S protocols, to ensure they are engaged and competent to fulfil the scrutiny function required and accordingly, we now wish to:

- Incorporate the anticipated theme-based scrutiny approach into a new work programme, to ensure that each activity impacts positively on the Council Plan and has measurable outcomes.
- Continue to increase public engagement and involvement in the scrutiny process during the current administration.
- Focus on the key 'topic' areas of change in the Borough that will impact on residents' lives and scrutinise those key areas.
- Improve the efficiency of overview, which will enable the panel to focus its efforts on actual scrutiny at meetings, by conducting as much overview as possible in advance of these meetings using email, briefing documents and evidence packs, as well as other channels, such as Democracy Snapshot and the forthcoming QSR dashboard.
- Plan meeting dates that fit and respond to the business need of the Panel, rather than fitting the business needs of the Panel into the (pre-set) meeting dates.

#### <u>Strategy</u> (how we plan to get there)

Once the new O&S work protocols have been agreed, work will be needed to 'put flesh on the bones' of the two key lines of enquiry for scrutiny that have previously been identified, as follows:

- The Integrated Care System (ICS) and Primary Care Network (PCN) arrangements
- The Bracknell Forest Housing Strategy Development

However, it is understood and appreciated that the People Directorate are not, currently, in a position to undertake this task. Once the O&S review has concluded, it may then be possible to include the topic selection list (see above) into the work programme, subject to integration with the updated / revised Council Plan.

#### Tactics (what we are doing to get there)

- Councillors Tullett and Mrs Mattick will continue to routinely meet with the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and the Director and Assistant Directors within the People Directorate, as and when necessary, to understand their current focus and work priorities and to inform and contribute to the current Panel's area of O&S responsibility, unless and until directed otherwise, by the O&S Commission.
- The Agenda setting meeting for the next planned ASCHH Panel meeting has been cancelled, in order to ascertain the updated / revised O&S protocols (e.g. enquiry review groups) and work programme.
- Councillors Tullett and Mrs Mattick will attend the O&S Commission scrutiny review workshop on 24 September, before determining the next steps.

# **Actions Log**

### Adult Social Care, Health & Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel From Minutes of Meetings Key: Grey = Action Complete



Action/Information Request	Response
(From 15 January 2019 Meeting) Item 34. Minutes and Matters Arising	
The sixth Bulletin supplied by the East Berkshire CCG about "The Big Conversation", had been circulated to Members. Members asked what impact the "Feeling Unwell?" communications piece which signposts people to the correct service, had been.	On 16 July 2019 Kirstine Berry, Governance and Scrutiny Co-ordinator supplied the ICS winter and Easter system resilience communication campaign evaluation supplied by Sabahat Turk Hassan, Senior Social Marketing and Communications Manager East Berkshire CCG to Members, Substitute Members, co-opted members and colleagues of the Adult Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel via email.
ACTION: Janette Fullwood, Head of Children, Young People's and Families: East Berkshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) confirmed she would look at the specific impact of the "Feeling Unwell?" information piece and advise the Panel.	
(From 4 February 2019 Meeting)	
It was raised with Catriona Khetyar, Head of Medicines Optimisation: East Berkshire Clinical Commissioning Group	A meeting was held at the Bracknell Council Offices on 21 June 2019 with Councillor Isabel Mattick, Damian James, Assistant Director: Contract Services, Claire Pike, Head of Environmental Services

Action/Information Request	Response
<ul> <li>(CCG) that the collection of sharps boxes was an issue. Patients using sharps were no longer able to take them back to GP surgeries, the boxes had to be left out in patients' front gardens between 7am and midnight for collection. Strangers had entered people's gardens and were looking at the sharps boxes. It was suggested that there needed to be a central point to drop off sharps boxes.</li> <li>Catriona Khetyar, Head of Medicines Optimisation: East Berkshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) agreed to take this suggestion back to the CCG for consideration.</li> <li>Action: Kirstine Berry, Governance and Scrutiny Co-ordinator to contact Catriona Khetyar to obtain an update and clarify for the Panel who is responsible for the policy for and responsibility of the collection of sharps.</li> </ul>	and Catriona Khetyar, Associate Director Medicines Optimisation, East Berkshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) who dialled in, to discuss the current process for the collection of sharps clinical waste within the Borough. A new proposal for the collection and disposal of sharps within the Borough was currently being worked on but a permit from the Environment Agency was required. It was anticipated that the Environment Agency might take approximately 3 to 6 months to issue the permit. Damian James will provide a further update when he hears from the Environment Agency.

(From 16 July 2019 meeting) Item 19 Workshop to develop	
proposals for the Overview and Scrutiny Work programme	Councillor Tullett, Chairman of the Adult Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Panel submitted a Chairman's report to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission for the meeting of the O&S Commission on 19 September 2019. This report provided the consolidated weighted decision
Action: Councillor Tullett/Councillor Mattick	matrices to form a ranked topic suggestion list for consideration in the development of the Overview and Scrutiny Commission work programme for the coming months and years.
• The weighted decision matrices will be consolidated to form a ranked topic suggestion list and will be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission to form the basis of suggested topics to form the Adult Social Care, Health and Housing Overview and Scrutiny work programme for the coming months and years.	The suggested topics that are included in the final work programme commissioned by the Overview and Scrutiny Commission will be dealt with separately as task and finish groups.
• The suggested topics that are included in the final work programme commissioned by the Overview and Scrutiny Commission will be dealt with separately as task and finish groups.	
(From 16 July 2019 meeting) Item 19 Workshop to develop proposals for the Overview and Scrutiny Work programme	
Action: Councillor Tullett/Councillor Mattick Following the workshop:	On 24 July 2019, Kirstine Berry, Governance and Scrutiny Co-ordinator supplied a copy of the raw qualitative responses given by attendees at the workshop to Councillor Birch, Executive Member for

• The collated vision statements for housing in Bracknell Forest will be provided to Sarah Gee, Assistant Director Early Help and Communities and Councillor Dale Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health and Housing for consideration during the development of the Housing Strategy	Adult Services, Health and Housing and Sarah Gee, Assistant Director Early help and Communities via email. The question attendees had been asked was: What is your vision for housing in Bracknell Forest?
--	--

Ranked aggregated themes across all topic	. This is the ranked and weighted suggested work programme by theme. Table 5

	Importance of Factors	100		20	30	10	210	
		48%	24%	10%	14%	5%	100%	
	FACTORS	Contributes to Current	Amount	Can be	impact	Skills required	Score	
		Council Plan 2015-19	of officer	influenced,				
			support	changed or				
			required	affected by the				
				Council				
Theme	Topic Theme						0	
1	Older people/Vulnerability and frailty	85	70	50	70	50	74.28571429	
	Planning inc wider support such as data needs, collection and							
11	reviews	81	62				72.28571429	
8	Young people-Healthy eating/activity/exercise	90	-		70	40		
13	Affordability	73	-	-		73		
4	Access to primary and non urgent care	90	30	79	75	26	69.47619048	
10	Right housing for right population (appropriate housing)	80				60	69.04761905	
15	Allocations policy by BFC	50			100	75		
12	Climate impact/energy efficiency/environment	74	-		58			
2	Mental Health	75	-		66	51		
14	Private Rental Sector	70	40	47	70	40	59.23809524	
	Wider support services, signposting, stakeholder							
5	partneships/online skills amd services promotion/self care	72					57.38095238	
3	Social factors- Transport/isolation/social prescribing	60						
9	Right housing for right population (Homelessness)	50						
6	GP appointments and systems	43	48		58	63		
7	Unsafe discharge	15	25	25	25	50	21.42857143	

Key: ICS/Health related themes Housing related themes

This page is intentionally left blank

### Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Status Report: September 2019

Due to pending changes in the Council's scrutiny function, the HMO and LED working group reports have been delayed. Once they have been approved, they will be brought to the O&S Commission for approval.

The Chairman of the Environment Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel requests that the Overview and Scrutiny Commission agree a meeting to discuss the availability of burial space within the Borough. The suggested date for this meeting is 14 October.

#### Suggestions for future topics for scrutiny:

Going forward, as Chairman of the ECC Panel I would like to suggest the following topics for scrutiny:

- i) Burial ground facilities and land supply coming to an end and the way forward
- ii) Waste and recycling and how to increase the recycling rate and reduce confusion
- iii) Climate change and how the Council can reduce its carbon footprint

#### Councillor John Porter

Chairman Environment, Culture and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel.

This page is intentionally left blank

1. What training programme was developed and implemented, in relation to call handling staff at the contact management centre, following the 2017 inspection and report?

Following the 2017 HMICFRS CDI audit/inspection, the force took the decision to implement a policy of recording crimes at the point of initial call. This was to include all cases where a requirement to record a crime arose during a call for service. The previous approach had been to delay recording pending the attendance of an officer, who was then required to confirm that a crime needed to be recorded.

At the time of the 2017 audit, and due to the previous practice, not all call handling staff within Contact Management had been trained in the requirements of National Crime Recording Standards (NCRS) and Home Office Counting Rules for Recorded Crime (HOCR). To support crime recording at the point of a call, all previously untrained call handlers were given training in NCRS and HOCR. The training enables staff to recognise those circumstances where a crime needs to be recorded, and to task more highly trained colleagues within Contact Management to record the crime.

There is little doubt that this change in policy has supported an increase in compliance with NCRS/HOCR (albeit we still have some way to go), and has certainly led to improvements in the timeliness of recording. Both of these improvements were noted by HMICFRS in their 2019 audit/inspection report.

Implementation of the new Contact Management Platform (CMP) will require all call handling staff to record crimes disclosed during calls for service. CMP will make the recording of crime easier by offering direct data transfer with the crime recording system; thus avoiding 'double keying' of information.

2. What further / enhanced training programme has been considered and / or being implemented, following this report?

At the time of the 2019 HMICFRS audit/inspection the force had already commenced briefing/training of operational sergeants and inspectors in certain aspects of NCRS/HOCR. This training was primarily focused on the filing of crimes, and the application of crime outcomes, but through necessity the training included the refreshing of knowledge around the basis requirements for recording crime. The briefing/training is continuing, and is being delivered either 1:1 or to small groups by staff within the Force Crime Registrar Unit. To date (02/09/2019) the briefing/training has been delivered to a total of 492 sergeants (or equivalent police staff supervisors) and 108 officers of inspector rank or above.

As part of the force's response to the 2019 report there is a plan to review current training programmes and identify opportunities to address current knowledge gaps in relation to NCRS/HOCR. The aspiration is that crime recording will form a 'golden thread' which flows through all relevant training programmes. Work continues in relation to this objective but the following have now been achieved in delivering the plan:

• Training on specific requirements of NCRS/HOCR in relation to rape and serious sexual offences has been included in a new Specialist Sexual Assault Investigators Development Programme (SSAIDP).

- A Professionalising Investigation Training (PIT) course has been extended to include training on NCRS/HOCR. The extended course will commence in the autumn and will be delivered to all new sergeants.
- Training in crime recording and the requirements of NCRS/HOCR are to be included as part of a revised CID course.
- 3. How many additional applications were made to the victim support service, from the 'additional' 13,800 crimes (i.e. potential victims)?

#### 'Await data on numbers of referrals.'

We are unlikely to be able to respond to this question with any accuracy - 13,800 more crimes does not mean 13,800 more victims. Some of the increase will be in additional crimes (i.e. the requirement to record more than one crime per victim) or crimes against the state where there is no identifiable victim.

Processes for referral to victim support services has changed during the period between HMICFRS reports, and victim consent is now required to refer. Given these changes it may not be possible to assess the strength of any link between an increase in referrals and an increase in recorded crime.

What is certain - by recording a victim's crime correctly does offer the victim the opportunity to engage with support services. Any improvements in recording will therefore enable access which may previously have been denied.

4. Why had the standard of N100 reporting, which included 5 rapes, deteriorated and why did contact management staff not understand the classification distinctions?

The NCRS requirement for recording reports of rape differs from that which applies to all other offences. Police are required to record <u>all</u> reports of rape (either as a full crime or N100) regardless of the origin of the report. The number of reports required also differs, in that one rape record (crime or N100) is required for each penetrating offender.

As part of their audit the HMICFRS reviewed a sample of 20 N100 reports. There is no statistical significance to the size of this sample.

In 2017 the HMICFRS found that 16 out of 20 N100 reports were correctly recorded – in 2019 this was 15 out of 20. In 2019 the HMICFRS also found that a number of multiple reports should have been created where only a single report was. In all cases either a N100 or full crime of rape was recorded.

Following the 2017 audit, additional guidance in relation to the recording of reports of rape was provided to Contact Management staff. This has also been made available to the force as a whole. It is not clear why the accuracy of these reports has reduced, although the complexity of the requirements can cause confusion, as can the difference in the reporting rules.

5. Why were certain rapes not recorded as a crime?

In their audit the HMICFRS reviewed 138 records where a crime of rape should have been recorded. Of these the force had recorded 126 rape crimes. Of the 12 rape crimes not recorded by the force all the relevant reports had been recorded as occurrences within the force's crime recording system (Niche). In the majority of cases an investigation was being undertaken.

In five cases the rape crimes had been incorrectly classified as other crimes/sexual crimes. This was due to either incorrect decision making or misunderstanding on the part of the crime recorder, or a change in information arising during the investigation which should have resulted in the classification being amended to a crime of rape.

In five of the remaining seven cases, the investigators clearly identified that they were investigating reports of rape, but the records were not formally classified as such. The errors are most likely to have been caused by confusion/misunderstanding around the correct completion of Niche to reflect that a crime had been recorded.

In the remaining two cases, crimes were not recorded due to a lack of understanding of NCRS. In both cases there was information to suggest that a crime had not occurred but this was insufficient to negate the need to record a crime from the outset.

6. Why has the decision-making, related to the cancelling of recorded offences and subsequent provision of this information to victims, got worse?

NCRS allows the cancellation of a recorded crime on 5 grounds:

- Crime occurred in another force area and has been transferred to the other force.
- Additional verifiable information (AVI) determines that no crime occurred.
- Duplicate or part of crime already recorded.
- The crime has been recorded in error.
- Self-defence in an assault up to ABH only.

As part of their audit the HMICFRS review a small sample of crime cancellations - around 20 each for rape, violence, sexual offences, and robbery. There is no statistical significance in the size of the samples, but the HMICFRS are keen to assess the accuracy of a force's decision making in regard to cancellation, and whether victims are fully engage within the process.

Within TVP only staff within the Force Crime Registrar Unit are authorised to cancel crimes. This was the case at the time of both audits, and it was the same individuals responsible for decision making in both the 2017 and 2019 samples.

In the 2019 audit the HMICFRS assessed that fewer of the crime cancellation decisions were correct - the relevant data is set out below. It is difficult to explain how/why this might be the case, since it was the same people making the decisions, and applying the same understanding. The majority of challenges to decision making revolved around the extent of any additional verifiable information (AVI). Since the audit, additional guidance has been issued to FCRU staff regarding the level of AVI required to support a decision to cancel a crime.

Crime	Correct decisions - 2017	Correct decisions - 2019
Rape	20/20	19/20
Violence	19/20	17/20
Sexual Offences (excl. rape)	20/20	16/21
Robbery	18/20	17/20

In the 2019 audit the HMICFRS noted that, of the 50 victims who should have been informed of the cancellation of their crime, only 42 were. In the 2017 audit this was 47 out of 49 victims. Once again it is difficult to account for this variation since it is the same people authorising the cancellation. However, there is a clear need to ensure that the fact that a victim has been informed of the decision to cancel a crime is clearly recorded as part of the cancellation request.

7. What is TVP doing, right now, to accelerate the pace of implementation, particular in relation to domestic violence cases?

The force CDI Delivery Plan has been updated to reflect the issues highlighted in the 2019 HMICFRS report. A delivery manager has been appointed to oversee delivery of the actions within the plan. Actions will have an identified owner and time scale for delivery. The plan remains under the ownership of the DCC and the CDI Strategic Working Group.

Following publication of the report TVP policy and guidance in relation crime recording has been refreshed/revised and published. Publication has been communicated to the force via the intranet.

Appropriate links have been made between CDI and investigation through Op. Endeavour. This will ensure improvements in CDI compliance can be achieved through improved supervision and management of investigation.

The implementation of the new Contact Management Platform has begun. The system, will make recording if crime easier and more efficient, by supporting data exchange between command and control and crime recording systems, and removing the need for double keying.

Work has begun in identifying training opportunities to address knowledge gaps in relation to the requirements of crime recording. Some training courses have already been amended to include input on crime recording and plans are in place to include this in others.

Achieving and maintaining a good level of compliance with NCRS remains an objective within the Force Strategic Plan. This is monitored through performance meetings and improvement reviews.

Audits of NCRS compliance continue to be undertaken and any learning will be shared to support improvement. The amount of 'front end' checking of crime recording has increased particularly around domestic incidents which account for a high proportion of violent crimes.

#### **OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMISSION**

### EXECUTIVE WORK PROGRAMME

REFERENCE:	1082320
TITLE:	Discretionary Rates Relief - New Applications
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To consider new applications for discretionary rate.
DECISION MAKER:	Executive Member for Culture, Resources and Public Protection
DECISION DATE:	22 Sep 2019
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Within existing budget
CONSULTEES:	None
CONSULTATION METHOD:	None

REFERENCE:	1085571
TITLE:	Council Plan Overview Report
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To inform the Executive of the performance of the council over the first quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.
DECISION MAKER:	Executive
DECISION DATE:	24 Sep 2019
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Included within report
CONSULTEES:	None
CONSULTATION METHOD:	Not applicable

REFERENCE:	1087402
TITLE:	Council Plan 2019-23
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To approve the new Council Plan.
DECISION MAKER:	Executive
DECISION DATE:	22 Oct 2019
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	No direct financial impact but the proposals will be costed as part of the annual budget process.
CONSULTEES:	Corporate Management Team.
CONSULTATION METHOD:	Meetings.

REFERENCE:	1085957
TITLE:	Procurement Plan for the Re-tender of Liability Insurance Provider and Claims Handling Service
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To agree the procurement plan for the re-tender of liability insurance provider and claims handling service.
DECISION MAKER:	Executive
DECISION DATE:	22 Oct 2019
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Current conditions in the insurance market mean that premium prices are uncertain. The impact will be minimised by seeking alternative prices based on higher levels of deductible.
CONSULTEES:	N/A
CONSULTATION METHOD:	N/A

REFERENCE:	1083574	
TITLE:	Property Joint Venture Project - Update	
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To update Executive on progress made in procurement of a Joint Venture partner.	
DECISION MAKER:	Executive	
DECISION DATE:	12 Nov 2019	
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	None at this stage.	
CONSULTEES:	None.	
CONSULTATION METHOD:	None.	

REFERENCE:	1085572	
TITLE:	Council Plan Overview Report	
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To inform the Executive of the performance of the council over the second quarter of the 2019/20 financial year.	
DECISION MAKER:	Executive	
DECISION DATE:	17 Dec 2019	
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Included within report	
CONSULTEES:	None	
CONSULTATION METHOD:	Not applicable	

REFERENCE:	1084649	
TITLE:	Revenue Budget 2020/21	
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To approve the Council's budget proposals for consultation.	
DECISION MAKER:	Executive	
DECISION DATE:	17 Dec 2019	
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Council's annual budget	
CONSULTEES:	Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate payers, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils and voluntary organisations. In addition, this report and all the supporting information will be publicly available to any individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal included within it. Internal consultation is via officers, members and more specifically the Overview & Scrutiny Commission and its panels.	
CONSULTATION METHOD:	Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate payers, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils and voluntary organisations. In addition, this report and all the supporting information will be publicly available to any individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal included within it. Internal consultation is via officers, members and more specifically the Overview & Scrutiny Commission and its panels. Method of Consultation: The Council's web site, a dedicated mailbox and a letter to all business ratepayers.	

REFERENCE:	1082321
TITLE:	Discretionary Rates Relief - New Applications
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To consider new applications for discretionary rate relief.
DECISION MAKER:	Executive Member for Culture, Resources and Public Protection
DECISION DATE:	13 Jan 2020
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Within existing budget.
CONSULTEES:	None
CONSULTATION METHOD:	None

REFERENCE:	1084706
TITLE:	Revenue Budget 2020/21
PURPOSE OF REPORT:	To recommend to Council the annual budget
DECISION MAKER:	Executive
DECISION DATE:	11 Feb 2020
FINANCIAL IMPACT:	Council's annual budget.
CONSULTEES:	Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate payers, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils and voluntary organisations. In addition, this report and all the supporting information will be publicly available to any individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal included within it. Internal consultation is via officers, members and more specifically the Overview & Scrutiny Commission and its panels.
CONSULTATION METHOD:	Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate payers, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils and voluntary organisations. In addition, this report and all the supporting information will be publicly available to any individual or group who wish to comment on any proposal included within it. Internal consultation is via officers, members and more specifically the Overview & Scrutiny Commission and its panels. Method of Consultation: The Council's web site, a dedicated mailbox and a letter to all business ratepayers.

This page is intentionally left blank